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Dear Commission Clerk Carroll and Supervisor Peskin,                                       
 

As requested in the Thursday July 2nd Government and Audit committee hearing kindly find
documentation to support my public comments relative to the following:
 

Questions submitted to DPW for RFP # 1 via email from CCO dated November 10th, 2015.  The
most relevant questions are 5, 8,9,10,11,16

Those questions were intended to seek clarity into what we considered a vague RFP.
 Specific questions around design elements, use of existing equipment during
installation process,  clarify how Prop E was incorporated into RFP intention
See DPW responses to all questions submitted- attachment SF PT PSK- Addendum No.
3.  See responses to questions 5, 8,9,10,11, 14, 21, 23, 24, 36, 37, 38, 39.

Copy of paragraph G. Advertising under Section III from the RFP #1 relative to the number of
signs permitted

Incorporated Prop G & Prop E.  (clearly states number of ad panels cannot be
increased).  Addendum No. 3 reinforced this point.

CCO cover letter and Proposal for RFP #1 dated December 16th 2015.
Incorporates multiple references to “unique and creative approach”, “creative and
flexible approach” in responding to the RFP
Includes one time upfront payment of $500,000 to purchase toilets and advertising
kiosks
Offers details and a concept on how to incorporate community based organizations like
Hunters Point Family, Tenderloin Housing Clinic into the contract.

Memo dated June 3rd 2016 to CCO executive team recommending that CCO not submit a
proposal for the Re-advertised Public Toilet & Kiosk Agreement

 Mentions pre bid meeting where DPW states there are no right to purchase existing
toilets in place.
Mentions the advantages to the incumbent.  Timing requirements, logistics and costs

 
Revision to Evaluation Criteria between RFP #1 and RFP #2

Selection Criteria RFP #1

mailto:BobSchmitt@clearchannel.com
mailto:aaron.peskin@sfgov.org
mailto:john.carroll@sfgov.org

RFP Public Toilet and Kiosk Agreement

		From

		Shinn, Stephen

		To

		DPW-ToiletAndKioskRFP

		Cc

		Qualls, Bruce; Schmitt, Bob; Landgraf, Amy

		Recipients

		toiletandkioskrfp@sfdpw.org; BruceQualls@clearchannel.com; BobSchmitt@clearchannel.com; AMYLANDGRAF@clearchannel.com



DPW,



Attached for your consideration are questions regarding the subject RFP. We will be looking forward to receiving your timely response as soon as possible.



Thank you,



Steve





Stephen Shinn
Senior Real Estate Representative

555 12th Street, Ste 950
Oakland, CA 94607



D 510.446.7216
clearchanneloutdoor.com 

Unless expressly stated otherwise, the information contained in this e-mail and any attachments is confidential and may be privileged. It is intended for the sole use of the addressee(s). Access to this e-mail and its attachments (if any) by anyone else is unauthorized. If you are not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution or copying of the contents of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and any action taken (or not taken) in reliance on it is unauthorized and may be unlawful. If you have received this e-mail in error, please inform the sender immediately and delete it from your computer
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SAN FRANCISCO – RFP


PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT











1. The Tentative Schedule does not indicate when the Proposers would receive answers to written questions submitted by November 13, 2015.  Based on the response to the questions, it does not provide sufficient time to react and then revise our Proposal by the Deadline for Submission: November 20, 2015.  Respectfully, we would ask that the due date be extended to January 20, 2016.








2. Ordinance No. 13-09 was passed in January 2009, which amend the San Francisco Administrative Code to prohibit advertisements for alcoholic beverages on City property.  Please confirm alcohol advertising will not be allowed per the terms of the new agreement.





3. Please provide the current 2015 advertising revenues from the Public Service Kiosks.





4. Please confirm the date the current contract terminates. Is it October 17, 2016 or January 17, 2017? 





5. On page 3 of the RFP, listed under the Aesthetics for the design elements, it would be helpful if the some items were more defined, such as:





· What is a contemporary design?


· The context for creating and use of a unique font? 


· How many interactive advertising screens?


· How many advertising panels could be digital LED versus static?





6. The current agreement required a performance bond of two-million dollars ($2,000,000), which was reduced to five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) after installation was completed. This RFP is requesting a commitment of ten-million dollars ($10,000,000) for the performance bond.  Would DPW consider reducing the amount of the performance bond required?





7. The Evaluation Criteria table indicates the Revenue Proposal is worth a total of 65 Total Points for the highest proposal, but the examples for calculating uses a total of 75 points, please clarify.  





8. For the convenience and the public’s continued use, would the existing public toilets become the    property of the City and/or transferred to the possible new contractor for operation until the new toilet and kiosks are installed? If not, when would the current contractor be required to remove all of the existing public toilets and kiosks?





9. Does DPW know what was the total capital cost expense investment made by JC DeCaux for the existing twenty-five (25) public toilets and one-hundred and fourteen (114)?  What is the unamortized value that a new contractor may have to pay to transfer the ownership?





10. Does DPW know the assessed value and/or real estate possessory interest taxes for the public toilets and kiosks paid by JC DeCaux for 2014?  








11. Due to Proposition E (2009) there can be no increase in the number of advertising signs allowed on street furniture.  Does DPW have any flexibility to allow more advertising to support the Proposer’s ability to finance the significant capital investment required by this RFP? 





12. Per the Section 603 of the City’s Sign Code, the general advertising signs shall not exceed 52 sq. ft., but does not specify the format dimensions.  Would the Proposer be required to adhere to a vertical format as stated in the current contract (not to exceed 12’ high by 5’ wide) or could we propose of a horizontal or square format?





13. The current contract and Sign Code states the public service kiosks are divided into three sections, two ad panels and one public service use.  To the best of our knowledge, many (or possible all) of the kiosks designed for a newsstand or other public service use are no longer in operation for the uses that were intended.  If there is no required, requested or necessary public service use, would it be possible to utilize the third section for advertising purposes?





14. If new contractor negotiates an agreement for a commercial use like an ATM for the kiosk’s public service section would the contractor be allowed to retain all the revenue?  





15. On page 10, the Special Note under B. Selection Process it states the City may opt to select more than one bidder.  This does not seem consistent with other terms and intent of the RFP.  Please explain a possible scenario where one of more companies could be selected?  Could the City select one company to provide the public toilets and another company to provide the kiosks? 





16. [bookmark: _GoBack]Are all of the 25 currently installed public and the 25 additional toilets, contemplated to be installed and/or located at permanent fixed locations?





17. What is the proposed timeline goal for the replacement the existing and/or installation of the new public toilets and the replacement of the kiosks?  The current contract allowed for a five (5) year six (6) month construction phase from the date permits were issued per the terms of a twenty (20) year contract.





18. During the term of the new contract, the City may request the removal or relocation of up to five (5) public toilets or kiosks per year.  Is this the total combined number or could it be as many as five (5) public toilets and five (5) kiosks per year?  





19. What is the encroachment permit fee for a public toilet and a public service kiosk?  The current contract set these permit fees to be $350.00 per toilet and kiosk.  Should we assume the fees will be the same per the terms of the new contract?
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SAN FRANCISCO – RFP

PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT







1. The Tentative Schedule does not indicate when the Proposers would receive answers to written questions submitted by November 13, 2015.  Based on the response to the questions, it does not provide sufficient time to react and then revise our Proposal by the Deadline for Submission: November 20, 2015.  Respectfully, we would ask that the due date be extended to January 20, 2016.





2. Ordinance No. 13-09 was passed in January 2009, which amend the San Francisco Administrative Code to prohibit advertisements for alcoholic beverages on City property.  Please confirm alcohol advertising will not be allowed per the terms of the new agreement.



3. Please provide the current 2015 advertising revenues from the Public Service Kiosks.



4. Please confirm the date the current contract terminates. Is it October 17, 2016 or January 17, 2017? 



5. On page 3 of the RFP, listed under the Aesthetics for the design elements, it would be helpful if the some items were more defined, such as:



· What is a contemporary design?

· The context for creating and use of a unique font? 

· How many interactive advertising screens?

· How many advertising panels could be digital LED versus static?



6. The current agreement required a performance bond of two-million dollars ($2,000,000), which was reduced to five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) after installation was completed. This RFP is requesting a commitment of ten-million dollars ($10,000,000) for the performance bond.  Would DPW consider reducing the amount of the performance bond required?



7. The Evaluation Criteria table indicates the Revenue Proposal is worth a total of 65 Total Points for the highest proposal, but the examples for calculating uses a total of 75 points, please clarify.  



8. For the convenience and the public’s continued use, would the existing public toilets become the    property of the City and/or transferred to the possible new contractor for operation until the new toilet and kiosks are installed? If not, when would the current contractor be required to remove all of the existing public toilets and kiosks?



9. Does DPW know what was the total capital cost expense investment made by JC DeCaux for the existing twenty-five (25) public toilets and one-hundred and fourteen (114)?  What is the unamortized value that a new contractor may have to pay to transfer the ownership?



10. Does DPW know the assessed value and/or real estate possessory interest taxes for the public toilets and kiosks paid by JC DeCaux for 2014?  





11. Due to Proposition E (2009) there can be no increase in the number of advertising signs allowed on street furniture.  Does DPW have any flexibility to allow more advertising to support the Proposer’s ability to finance the significant capital investment required by this RFP? 



12. Per the Section 603 of the City’s Sign Code, the general advertising signs shall not exceed 52 sq. ft., but does not specify the format dimensions.  Would the Proposer be required to adhere to a vertical format as stated in the current contract (not to exceed 12’ high by 5’ wide) or could we propose of a horizontal or square format?



13. The current contract and Sign Code states the public service kiosks are divided into three sections, two ad panels and one public service use.  To the best of our knowledge, many (or possible all) of the kiosks designed for a newsstand or other public service use are no longer in operation for the uses that were intended.  If there is no required, requested or necessary public service use, would it be possible to utilize the third section for advertising purposes?



14. If new contractor negotiates an agreement for a commercial use like an ATM for the kiosk’s public service section would the contractor be allowed to retain all the revenue?  



15. On page 10, the Special Note under B. Selection Process it states the City may opt to select more than one bidder.  This does not seem consistent with other terms and intent of the RFP.  Please explain a possible scenario where one of more companies could be selected?  Could the City select one company to provide the public toilets and another company to provide the kiosks? 



16. Are all of the 25 currently installed public and the 25 additional toilets, contemplated to be installed and/or located at permanent fixed locations?



17. [bookmark: _GoBack]What is the proposed timeline goal for the replacement the existing and/or installation of the new public toilets and the replacement of the kiosks?  The current contract allowed for a five (5) year six (6) month construction phase from the date permits were issued per the terms of a twenty (20) year contract.



18. During the term of the new contract, the City may request the removal or relocation of up to five (5) public toilets or kiosks per year.  Is this the total combined number or could it be as many as five (5) public toilets and five (5) kiosks per year?  



19. What is the encroachment permit fee for a public toilet and a public service kiosk?  The current contract set these permit fees to be $350.00 per toilet and kiosk.  Should we assume the fees will be the same per the terms of the new contract?
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City may elect to negotiate additional obtions including relocating or rhoving PTs & f @ o v

PSKs to other locations for various reasons beyond the five (5) per year, or adding
other design features or services as suggested by the City or the Proposer.

23
3. The Proposer must create and maintain an Internet-based Inventory, Maintenance and .
Complaint Database System and must log in this system all required data on PT and E;\
PSK inventory, maintenance activities, and condition complaints and reports. This
database must also provide current permit information, a list of locations and map of all E
street furniture installed by Proposer and be accessible to the City electronically. B

of existing equipment

The Proposer may use PSKs and PTs for general advertising as negotiated in the

contract. There shall not be any increase the amount of advertising on PSKs and PTs

from existing amounts consistent with the Planning Code sec. 611, and voter-passed B |16
‘propositions G (2002) and E (2009). All general advertising signs shall be compliant

with all applicable codes and requirements.
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December 16, 2015 







San Francisco Public Works

Contract Administration

1155 Market Street, 4th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attention: Stacey Camillo



RE:	City and County of San Francisco	

	Request for Proposal (RFP)

Public Toilet and Kiosk Agreement



Introduction and Executive Summary



Clear Channel Outdoor, Inc. (CCO) is pleased to submit our proposal with our unique and creative approach to the City and County of San Francisco (City), Department of Public Works (DPW) for the next contract to provide public toilets and kiosks for the City’s benefit.



The Automatic Public Toilet and Public Service Kiosk program that was contracted with JC DeCaux more than 20 years ago has been a highly successful advertising program, but not a hugely successful public toilet program.  The current public toilets have not been utilized properly for their intended purpose.  It has been well documented that many of the public toilet locations have been fraught with illegal activities, breakdowns, lengthy out-of-service times and vandalism. 



What has been successful is DPW’s recently implemented “Pit Stop” pilot program.  It is apparent for a variety of reasons that on site toilet monitor staffing at selected public toilets is absolutely necessary in an ever changing and challenging diverse urban environment like we have in San Francisco.



With this in mind, our proposal is intended to provide the necessary funding to DPW as follows:



· One-time upfront payment of $500,000 to purchase the existing public toilets and kiosks. 



· Annual payments beginning at $2,500,000 (increased 3% per year) to fully-staff the toilet monitors. 



· Additional annual payments of $750,000 for DPW to purchase, install and maintain new public toilets at either fixed locations or portable mobile toilets, at the City’s discretion.   



· Upon the full replacement of the 114 advertising kiosks at CCO’s capital cost, Minimum Annual Guarantee (MAG) payments of $750,000 or 10% share of the advertising revenue, whichever is greater.



Over the ten-year term of the new agreement, DPW will receive a total of $40,500,000 in guaranteed payments.  In addition, depending upon the level of success of the advertising program there would potentially be a significant additional portion paid in the share of advertising revenue. 



[bookmark: _GoBack]CCO believes our proposal will accomplish both an “In-Kind and Financial Benefit” as contemplated under the terms of the RFP.  This proposal provides the most creative and flexible approach to maximize the strengths of a public-private partnership.  With the necessary funding provided, the City’s will be able to successfully administer, manage and implement the continuation of public toilet program as DPW deems appropriate.  New jobs will be created, the expectations of both residents and tourists will be meet, neighborhoods will be cleaner and safer, as well as providing the city with additional resources to address the homeless issue.  By implementing our vision, it will remove people from the streets, move them into housing and create new jobs.  As a good corporate citizen, CCO has preliminarily reached out and identified a few local community based organizations such as the Hunters Point Family, RDJ Enterprises and the Tenderloin Housing Clinic.  We believe these organizations are best suited to work directly with DPW as Workforce Development contractors to provide the required toilet monitoring and maintenance services.  We will assist DPW with the facilitation of bringing these organizations on board. 



CCO is proud of the successful relationship we have with the City, DPW and the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency.  We will be looking forward to working with all the City departments to ensure the public toilet program will be successful in the future.



This letter and proposal are not binding and are instead to serve as the basis for negotiating written agreement.  Neither this letter nor the proposal creates an obligation to enter or to continue negotiations.  CCO, the City and DPW will not be bound to an agreement unless and until each party executes a final and definitive written contract.





Sincerely,





Robert Schmitt

President / General Manager
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


(RE-ADVERTISED) 
SAN FRANCISCO RFP 


PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT 
Proposal Due: June 3, 2016 


Overview 


The Northern California Regional Branch is recommending that we not submit a proposal.  In 
general, to submit a conforming proposal under current assumptions, the Capital Expense Cost 
would be , which would yield a poor IRR of , which does not make this an attractive 
opportunity.  CCO can generate superior returns with less investments on more conventional 
projects currently being pursued.  


The reissued RFP is seeking to replace 25 existing automatic public toilets and provide an 
additional 15 new automatic public at to be determined sites.  At the pre-bid meeting, DPW 
specifically stated there would be no right to purchase the existing JCDecaux toilets in place, a key 
component proposed in our original proposal.  


It again stipulates that personnel will monitor activity at 25 public toilet locations 12-hours a day, 
7-days a week.  This is estimated to be  in an additional annual expense. Also, the RFP 
adopted our concept that companies whose primary business is advertising are strongly 
encouraged to use a Community-Based Organization 


In addition, the RFP requests an increase in the Financial Benefit in terms of Minimum Annual 
Guarantee (MAG) and a percentage of the advertising revenue.   


Added to this RFP is a requirement for a CEQA review of the 15 new public toilets, which is an 
another expense estimated to be .   


JCDecaux enjoys an advantageous position as the incumbent as one of the City priorities is 
maintaining the toilet services throughout the transition.  It was rumored that Intersection offered a 
significant amount of money with the stipulation that the number of advertising kiosks be increased 
in order for them to duplicate their LinkNYC to San Francisco. 


For your additional review and consideration, all other relevant terms are on the following page. 


Redacted
















































Revenue Proposal 65 points
Organization and Management Approach 5 points
Maintenance and Monitoring    10 points
Design  5 points
Communications  5 points
Oral Interview- 5 points
Total 100 points

Selection Criteria RFP #2
Project Approach (20 pts) – previous RFP (5 pts)
Assigned Project Staff (10 pts)
Experience of Firm and Subconsultants (10 pts)
Revenue and Fee Proposal (20 pts) – previous RFP (65 pts)
Oral Interview (40 pts) – previous RFP (5 pts)
Total 100 points

 
Let me know if you any addition questions.
 
Sincerely
 
 



From: Shinn, Stephen
To: DPW-ToiletAndKioskRFP
Cc: Qualls, Bruce; Schmitt, Bob; Landgraf, Amy
Subject: RFP Public Toilet and Kiosk Agreement
Date: Tuesday, November 10, 2015 2:27:39 PM
Attachments: image004.png

SF RFP Questions - Public Toilet & Kiosks.docx

DPW,
Attached for your consideration are questions regarding the subject RFP. We will be looking forward
to receiving your timely response as soon as possible.
Thank you,
Steve

Stephen Shinn
Senior Real Estate Representative

555 12th Street, Ste 950
Oakland, CA 94607
D 510.446.7216
clearchanneloutdoor.com 

Unless expressly stated otherwise, the information contained in this e-mail and any attachments is confidential and may be privileged. It is intended for the sole
use of the addressee(s). Access to this e-mail and its attachments (if any) by anyone else is unauthorized. If you are not the intended recipient, or an employee
or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution or copying of the contents of this e-mail is strictly
prohibited and any action taken (or not taken) in reliance on it is unauthorized and may be unlawful. If you have received this e-mail in error, please inform the
sender immediately and delete it from your computer

mailto:StephenShinn@clearchannel.com
mailto:toiletandkioskrfp@sfdpw.org
mailto:BruceQualls@clearchannel.com
mailto:BobSchmitt@clearchannel.com
mailto:AMYLANDGRAF@clearchannel.com
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SAN FRANCISCO – RFP

PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT







1. The Tentative Schedule does not indicate when the Proposers would receive answers to written questions submitted by November 13, 2015.  Based on the response to the questions, it does not provide sufficient time to react and then revise our Proposal by the Deadline for Submission: November 20, 2015.  Respectfully, we would ask that the due date be extended to January 20, 2016.





2. Ordinance No. 13-09 was passed in January 2009, which amend the San Francisco Administrative Code to prohibit advertisements for alcoholic beverages on City property.  Please confirm alcohol advertising will not be allowed per the terms of the new agreement.



3. Please provide the current 2015 advertising revenues from the Public Service Kiosks.



4. Please confirm the date the current contract terminates. Is it October 17, 2016 or January 17, 2017? 



5. On page 3 of the RFP, listed under the Aesthetics for the design elements, it would be helpful if the some items were more defined, such as:



· What is a contemporary design?

· The context for creating and use of a unique font? 

· How many interactive advertising screens?

· How many advertising panels could be digital LED versus static?



6. The current agreement required a performance bond of two-million dollars ($2,000,000), which was reduced to five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) after installation was completed. This RFP is requesting a commitment of ten-million dollars ($10,000,000) for the performance bond.  Would DPW consider reducing the amount of the performance bond required?



7. The Evaluation Criteria table indicates the Revenue Proposal is worth a total of 65 Total Points for the highest proposal, but the examples for calculating uses a total of 75 points, please clarify.  



8. For the convenience and the public’s continued use, would the existing public toilets become the    property of the City and/or transferred to the possible new contractor for operation until the new toilet and kiosks are installed? If not, when would the current contractor be required to remove all of the existing public toilets and kiosks?



9. Does DPW know what was the total capital cost expense investment made by JC DeCaux for the existing twenty-five (25) public toilets and one-hundred and fourteen (114)?  What is the unamortized value that a new contractor may have to pay to transfer the ownership?



10. Does DPW know the assessed value and/or real estate possessory interest taxes for the public toilets and kiosks paid by JC DeCaux for 2014?  





11. Due to Proposition E (2009) there can be no increase in the number of advertising signs allowed on street furniture.  Does DPW have any flexibility to allow more advertising to support the Proposer’s ability to finance the significant capital investment required by this RFP? 



12. Per the Section 603 of the City’s Sign Code, the general advertising signs shall not exceed 52 sq. ft., but does not specify the format dimensions.  Would the Proposer be required to adhere to a vertical format as stated in the current contract (not to exceed 12’ high by 5’ wide) or could we propose of a horizontal or square format?



13. The current contract and Sign Code states the public service kiosks are divided into three sections, two ad panels and one public service use.  To the best of our knowledge, many (or possible all) of the kiosks designed for a newsstand or other public service use are no longer in operation for the uses that were intended.  If there is no required, requested or necessary public service use, would it be possible to utilize the third section for advertising purposes?



14. If new contractor negotiates an agreement for a commercial use like an ATM for the kiosk’s public service section would the contractor be allowed to retain all the revenue?  



15. On page 10, the Special Note under B. Selection Process it states the City may opt to select more than one bidder.  This does not seem consistent with other terms and intent of the RFP.  Please explain a possible scenario where one of more companies could be selected?  Could the City select one company to provide the public toilets and another company to provide the kiosks? 



16. [bookmark: _GoBack]Are all of the 25 currently installed public and the 25 additional toilets, contemplated to be installed and/or located at permanent fixed locations?



17. What is the proposed timeline goal for the replacement the existing and/or installation of the new public toilets and the replacement of the kiosks?  The current contract allowed for a five (5) year six (6) month construction phase from the date permits were issued per the terms of a twenty (20) year contract.



18. During the term of the new contract, the City may request the removal or relocation of up to five (5) public toilets or kiosks per year.  Is this the total combined number or could it be as many as five (5) public toilets and five (5) kiosks per year?  



19. What is the encroachment permit fee for a public toilet and a public service kiosk?  The current contract set these permit fees to be $350.00 per toilet and kiosk.  Should we assume the fees will be the same per the terms of the new contract?
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SAN FRANCISCO – RFP 
PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
1. The Tentative Schedule does not indicate when the Proposers would receive answers to written 

questions submitted by November 13, 2015.  Based on the response to the questions, it does not 
provide sufficient time to react and then revise our Proposal by the Deadline for Submission: 
November 20, 2015.  Respectfully, we would ask that the due date be extended to January 20, 
2016. 

 
 

2. Ordinance No. 13-09 was passed in January 2009, which amend the San Francisco Administrative 
Code to prohibit advertisements for alcoholic beverages on City property.  Please confirm alcohol 
advertising will not be allowed per the terms of the new agreement. 
 

3. Please provide the current 2015 advertising revenues from the Public Service Kiosks. 
 

4. Please confirm the date the current contract terminates. Is it October 17, 2016 or January 17, 
2017?  
 

5. On page 3 of the RFP, listed under the Aesthetics for the design elements, it would be helpful if 
the some items were more defined, such as: 
 

• What is a contemporary design? 
• The context for creating and use of a unique font?  
• How many interactive advertising screens? 
• How many advertising panels could be digital LED versus static? 

 
6. The current agreement required a performance bond of two-million dollars ($2,000,000), which 

was reduced to five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) after installation was completed. This 
RFP is requesting a commitment of ten-million dollars ($10,000,000) for the performance bond.  
Would DPW consider reducing the amount of the performance bond required? 
 

7. The Evaluation Criteria table indicates the Revenue Proposal is worth a total of 65 Total Points for 
the highest proposal, but the examples for calculating uses a total of 75 points, please clarify.   

 
8. For the convenience and the public’s continued use, would the existing public toilets become the    

property of the City and/or transferred to the possible new contractor for operation until the new 
toilet and kiosks are installed? If not, when would the current contractor be required to remove all 
of the existing public toilets and kiosks? 
 



 

Clear Channel Outdoor 
555 12th Street     Suite 950     Oakland, CA 94607 
Call 510.835.5900   /   Fax 510.834.9410   /   Visit ClearChannelOutdoor.com    

9. Does DPW know what was the total capital cost expense investment made by JC DeCaux for the 
existing twenty-five (25) public toilets and one-hundred and fourteen (114)?  What is the 
unamortized value that a new contractor may have to pay to transfer the ownership? 
 

10. Does DPW know the assessed value and/or real estate possessory interest taxes for the public 
toilets and kiosks paid by JC DeCaux for 2014?   
 
 

11. Due to Proposition E (2009) there can be no increase in the number of advertising signs allowed 
on street furniture.  Does DPW have any flexibility to allow more advertising to support the 
Proposer’s ability to finance the significant capital investment required by this RFP?  
 

12. Per the Section 603 of the City’s Sign Code, the general advertising signs shall not exceed 52 sq. 
ft., but does not specify the format dimensions.  Would the Proposer be required to adhere to a 
vertical format as stated in the current contract (not to exceed 12’ high by 5’ wide) or could we 
propose of a horizontal or square format? 
 

13. The current contract and Sign Code states the public service kiosks are divided into three sections, 
two ad panels and one public service use.  To the best of our knowledge, many (or possible all) of 
the kiosks designed for a newsstand or other public service use are no longer in operation for the 
uses that were intended.  If there is no required, requested or necessary public service use, would it 
be possible to utilize the third section for advertising purposes? 
 

14. If new contractor negotiates an agreement for a commercial use like an ATM for the kiosk’s 
public service section would the contractor be allowed to retain all the revenue?   
 

15. On page 10, the Special Note under B. Selection Process it states the City may opt to select more 
than one bidder.  This does not seem consistent with other terms and intent of the RFP.  Please 
explain a possible scenario where one of more companies could be selected?  Could the City select 
one company to provide the public toilets and another company to provide the kiosks?  
 

16. Are all of the 25 currently installed public and the 25 additional toilets, contemplated to be 
installed and/or located at permanent fixed locations? 
 

17. What is the proposed timeline goal for the replacement the existing and/or installation of the new 
public toilets and the replacement of the kiosks?  The current contract allowed for a five (5) year 
six (6) month construction phase from the date permits were issued per the terms of a twenty (20) 
year contract. 
 

18. During the term of the new contract, the City may request the removal or relocation of up to five 
(5) public toilets or kiosks per year.  Is this the total combined number or could it be as many as 
five (5) public toilets and five (5) kiosks per year?   
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19. What is the encroachment permit fee for a public toilet and a public service kiosk?  The current 
contract set these permit fees to be $350.00 per toilet and kiosk.  Should we assume the fees will 
be the same per the terms of the new contract? 
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SAN FRANCISCO – RFP 
PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
1. The Tentative Schedule does not indicate when the Proposers would receive answers to written 

questions submitted by November 13, 2015.  Based on the response to the questions, it does not 
provide sufficient time to react and then revise our Proposal by the Deadline for Submission: 
November 20, 2015.  Respectfully, we would ask that the due date be extended to January 20, 
2016. 

 
 

2. Ordinance No. 13-09 was passed in January 2009, which amend the San Francisco Administrative 
Code to prohibit advertisements for alcoholic beverages on City property.  Please confirm alcohol 
advertising will not be allowed per the terms of the new agreement. 
 

3. Please provide the current 2015 advertising revenues from the Public Service Kiosks. 
 

4. Please confirm the date the current contract terminates. Is it October 17, 2016 or January 17, 
2017?  
 

5. On page 3 of the RFP, listed under the Aesthetics for the design elements, it would be helpful if 
the some items were more defined, such as: 
 

• What is a contemporary design? 
• The context for creating and use of a unique font?  
• How many interactive advertising screens? 
• How many advertising panels could be digital LED versus static? 

 
6. The current agreement required a performance bond of two-million dollars ($2,000,000), which 

was reduced to five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) after installation was completed. This 
RFP is requesting a commitment of ten-million dollars ($10,000,000) for the performance bond.  
Would DPW consider reducing the amount of the performance bond required? 
 

7. The Evaluation Criteria table indicates the Revenue Proposal is worth a total of 65 Total Points for 
the highest proposal, but the examples for calculating uses a total of 75 points, please clarify.   

 
8. For the convenience and the public’s continued use, would the existing public toilets become the    

property of the City and/or transferred to the possible new contractor for operation until the new 
toilet and kiosks are installed? If not, when would the current contractor be required to remove all 
of the existing public toilets and kiosks? 
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9. Does DPW know what was the total capital cost expense investment made by JC DeCaux for the 
existing twenty-five (25) public toilets and one-hundred and fourteen (114)?  What is the 
unamortized value that a new contractor may have to pay to transfer the ownership? 
 

10. Does DPW know the assessed value and/or real estate possessory interest taxes for the public 
toilets and kiosks paid by JC DeCaux for 2014?   
 
 

11. Due to Proposition E (2009) there can be no increase in the number of advertising signs allowed 
on street furniture.  Does DPW have any flexibility to allow more advertising to support the 
Proposer’s ability to finance the significant capital investment required by this RFP?  
 

12. Per the Section 603 of the City’s Sign Code, the general advertising signs shall not exceed 52 sq. 
ft., but does not specify the format dimensions.  Would the Proposer be required to adhere to a 
vertical format as stated in the current contract (not to exceed 12’ high by 5’ wide) or could we 
propose of a horizontal or square format? 
 

13. The current contract and Sign Code states the public service kiosks are divided into three sections, 
two ad panels and one public service use.  To the best of our knowledge, many (or possible all) of 
the kiosks designed for a newsstand or other public service use are no longer in operation for the 
uses that were intended.  If there is no required, requested or necessary public service use, would it 
be possible to utilize the third section for advertising purposes? 
 

14. If new contractor negotiates an agreement for a commercial use like an ATM for the kiosk’s 
public service section would the contractor be allowed to retain all the revenue?   
 

15. On page 10, the Special Note under B. Selection Process it states the City may opt to select more 
than one bidder.  This does not seem consistent with other terms and intent of the RFP.  Please 
explain a possible scenario where one of more companies could be selected?  Could the City select 
one company to provide the public toilets and another company to provide the kiosks?  
 

16. Are all of the 25 currently installed public and the 25 additional toilets, contemplated to be 
installed and/or located at permanent fixed locations? 
 

17. What is the proposed timeline goal for the replacement the existing and/or installation of the new 
public toilets and the replacement of the kiosks?  The current contract allowed for a five (5) year 
six (6) month construction phase from the date permits were issued per the terms of a twenty (20) 
year contract. 
 

18. During the term of the new contract, the City may request the removal or relocation of up to five 
(5) public toilets or kiosks per year.  Is this the total combined number or could it be as many as 
five (5) public toilets and five (5) kiosks per year?   
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19. What is the encroachment permit fee for a public toilet and a public service kiosk?  The current 
contract set these permit fees to be $350.00 per toilet and kiosk.  Should we assume the fees will 
be the same per the terms of the new contract? 
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December 16, 2015  
 
 
 
San Francisco Public Works 
Contract Administration 
1155 Market Street, 4th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Attention: Stacey Camillo 
 
RE: City and County of San Francisco  
 Request for Proposal (RFP) 

Public Toilet and Kiosk Agreement 
 
Introduction and Executive Summary 
 
Clear Channel Outdoor, Inc. (CCO) is pleased to submit our proposal with our unique and creative 
approach to the City and County of San Francisco (City), Department of Public Works (DPW) for the 
next contract to provide public toilets and kiosks for the City’s benefit. 
 
The Automatic Public Toilet and Public Service Kiosk program that was contracted with JC DeCaux 
more than 20 years ago has been a highly successful advertising program, but not a hugely successful 
public toilet program.  The current public toilets have not been utilized properly for their intended 
purpose.  It has been well documented that many of the public toilet locations have been fraught with 
illegal activities, breakdowns, lengthy out-of-service times and vandalism.  
 
What has been successful is DPW’s recently implemented “Pit Stop” pilot program.  It is apparent for a 
variety of reasons that on site toilet monitor staffing at selected public toilets is absolutely necessary in an 
ever changing and challenging diverse urban environment like we have in San Francisco. 
 
With this in mind, our proposal is intended to provide the necessary funding to DPW as follows: 
 
 One-time upfront payment of $500,000 to purchase the existing public toilets and kiosks.  

 
 Annual payments beginning at $2,500,000 (increased 3% per year) to fully-staff the toilet 

monitors.  
 

 Additional annual payments of $750,000 for DPW to purchase, install and maintain new public 
toilets at either fixed locations or portable mobile toilets, at the City’s discretion.    

 
 Upon the full replacement of the 114 advertising kiosks at CCO’s capital cost, Minimum Annual 

Guarantee (MAG) payments of $750,000 or 10% share of the advertising revenue, whichever is 
greater. 
 



 

Clear Channel Outdoor 
555 12th Street     Suite 950     Oakland, CA 94607 
Call 510.835.5900   /   Fax 510.834.9410   /   Visit ClearChannelOutdoor.com    

Over the ten-year term of the new agreement, DPW will receive a total of $40,500,000 in 
guaranteed payments.  In addition, depending upon the level of success of the advertising program 
there would potentially be a significant additional portion paid in the share of advertising revenue.  

 
CCO believes our proposal will accomplish both an “In-Kind and Financial Benefit” as contemplated 
under the terms of the RFP.  This proposal provides the most creative and flexible approach to 
maximize the strengths of a public-private partnership.  With the necessary funding provided, the 
City’s will be able to successfully administer, manage and implement the continuation of public 
toilet program as DPW deems appropriate.  New jobs will be created, the expectations of both 
residents and tourists will be meet, neighborhoods will be cleaner and safer, as well as providing 
the city with additional resources to address the homeless issue.  By implementing our vision, it will 
remove people from the streets, move them into housing and create new jobs.  As a good corporate 
citizen, CCO has preliminarily reached out and identified a few local community based 
organizations such as the Hunters Point Family, RDJ Enterprises and the Tenderloin Housing Clinic.  
We believe these organizations are best suited to work directly with DPW as Workforce 
Development contractors to provide the required toilet monitoring and maintenance services.  We 
will assist DPW with the facilitation of bringing these organizations on board.  

 
CCO is proud of the successful relationship we have with the City, DPW and the San Francisco 
Municipal Transportation Agency.  We will be looking forward to working with all the City 
departments to ensure the public toilet program will be successful in the future. 
 
This letter and proposal are not binding and are instead to serve as the basis for negotiating written 
agreement.  Neither this letter nor the proposal creates an obligation to enter or to continue 
negotiations.  CCO, the City and DPW will not be bound to an agreement unless and until each party 
executes a final and definitive written contract. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Robert Schmitt 
President / General Manager 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

(RE-ADVERTISED) 
SAN FRANCISCO RFP 

PUBLIC TOILET & KIOSK AGREEMENT 
Proposal Due: June 3, 2016 

Overview 

The Northern California Regional Branch is recommending that we not submit a proposal.  In 
general, to submit a conforming proposal under current assumptions, the Capital Expense Cost 
would be , which would yield a poor IRR of , which does not make this an attractive 
opportunity.  CCO can generate superior returns with less investments on more conventional 
projects currently being pursued.  

The reissued RFP is seeking to replace 25 existing automatic public toilets and provide an 
additional 15 new automatic public at to be determined sites.  At the pre-bid meeting, DPW 
specifically stated there would be no right to purchase the existing JCDecaux toilets in place, a key 
component proposed in our original proposal.  

It again stipulates that personnel will monitor activity at 25 public toilet locations 12-hours a day, 
7-days a week.  This is estimated to be  in an additional annual expense. Also, the RFP 
adopted our concept that companies whose primary business is advertising are strongly 
encouraged to use a Community-Based Organization 

In addition, the RFP requests an increase in the Financial Benefit in terms of Minimum Annual 
Guarantee (MAG) and a percentage of the advertising revenue.   

Added to this RFP is a requirement for a CEQA review of the 15 new public toilets, which is an 
another expense estimated to be .   

JCDecaux enjoys an advantageous position as the incumbent as one of the City priorities is 
maintaining the toilet services throughout the transition.  It was rumored that Intersection offered a 
significant amount of money with the stipulation that the number of advertising kiosks be increased 
in order for them to duplicate their LinkNYC to San Francisco. 

For your additional review and consideration, all other relevant terms are on the following page. 

Redacted






